
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Thursday, October 23rd, 2025 

Morgan County Commission Room 

6:30 p.m. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Morgan County Planning Commission will meet at the 

above time and date at the Morgan County Courthouse, Commission Chambers; 48 West Young St., 

Morgan, Utah. The agenda is as follows: 

1. Call to Order – Prayer 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Declaration of Conflicts of Interest 

5. Public Comment 

Administrative 

6. Public Meeting/Discussion/Decision – Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP: A request for 

approval of a Conditional Use Permit (C2) that is required for a sign on the rear of a 

commercial building. The property is identified by parcel number 00-0090-5051 and serial 

number 03-CANVCOMW-0006 and is approximately located at 5714 W Canyon View Cir 

in unincorporated Morgan County. 

7. Public Meeting/Discussion/Decision – Croydon Gravel Pit CUP: A request for approval of 

a Conditional Use Permit (C3) that is required for the use of a private gravel pit. The property 

is identified by parcel number 00-0002-4354 and serial number 01-004-688 and is 

approximately located at 3100 N Lost Creek Rd in unincorporated Morgan County. 

8. Public Meeting/Discussion/Decision – Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP: A request 

for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (C2) that is required for an indoor riding arena. The 

property is identified by parcel number 00-0000-7268 and serial number 01-003-176 and is 

approximately located 330 feet northwest of the Porterville Chapel of the Church of Jesus 

Christ of Latter-day Saints in unincorporated Morgan County. 

9. Business/Staff Questions 

10. Approval of October 9th, 2025, Planning Commission Minutes 

11. Adjourn 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Morgan County, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, provides accommodations and auxiliary communicative aids and services for all those citizens in need of 

assistance. Persons requesting these accommodations should call Planning & Development at 801-845-4015, giving at least 24 hours' notice prior to the meeting. A packet containing 

supporting materials is available for public review prior to the meeting at the Planning and Development Services Dept. and will also be provided at the meeting. Note: Effort will 

be made to follow the agenda as outlined. However, agenda items may be discussed out of order as circumstances may require. If you are interested in a particular agenda item, 

attendance is suggested from the beginning of the meeting. 



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 1 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  

Public Meeting 

File #CUP25.008 

 

Applicant/Owner:   Britain Sorensen 

Project Location:  5714 W Canyon View Cir 

Parcel Number:  00-0090-5051  

Serial Numbers: 03-CANVCOMW-0006 

Current Zoning:  Highway Commercial (CH) 

Acreage:   1.02 acres 

  

 

 
REQUEST 

A request for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (C2) that is required for a sign on the rear of a 

commercial building. 

 

ATTORNEY GUIDANCE: 

Administrative Review: CUPs are subject to administrative review. 

The sole issue in land use administration is whether the application complies with county 

ordinances. If it does, it must be approved.  The only circumstance in which an application 

could be denied is if a land use authority find that a compelling, countervailing public 

interest would be jeopardized.  In determining whether this circumstance exists, the courts 

have stated, “If a proposal met zoning requirements at the time of application but seriously 

threatens public health, safety, or welfare, the interests of the public should not be 

thwarted.”  W. Land Equities v. Logan, 617 P.2d 388, 395-96 (Utah Sup.Ct. 1980).” 

Essentially, the only situation in which such an application can be denied is the application 

seriously threatens public health, safety or welfare.   

While CUPs are subject to administrative review, they are an exception to the general zoning rule. 

By allowing them through ordinance, our County legislature has acknowledged that CUPs may 

have some impacts but has decided they are permissible. To address any detrimental effects that 

may arise, the legislature has also allowed for reasonable conditions to be imposed when those 

effects are reasonably anticipated.  In doing so, our County is following State law, which provides, 

“A land use authority shall approve a conditional use if reasonable conditions are proposed, or can 

be imposed, to mitigate the reasonably anticipated detrimental effects of the proposed use in 

accordance with applicable standards.” Utah Code Ann. § 17-27a-506(2)(a)(i). 

PLANNNG COMMISSION  
STAFF REPORT 
Conditional Use Permit 

October 23, 2025 



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 2 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

1. Introduction 

• Conditional uses are presumed to be appropriate and desirable in the designated zoning 

area. 

• CUPs must be approved if they meet the requirements outlined in the local ordinance. 

• Conditions may be imposed to mitigate reasonably anticipated detrimental effects. 

 

2. Guiding Principles 

• Presumption of Approval: A CUP must be approved unless detrimental effects cannot be 

substantially mitigated. 

• Reasonably Anticipated Detrimental Effects (RADEs):  

o Must be supported by substantial evidence. 

o Public clamor, opinion, or general opposition do not constitute substantial 

evidence. 

o Mitigation, Not Elimination: Conditions should substantially mitigate RADEs, but 

do not have to completely eliminate the detrimental effects. 

 

 3. Review Process 

  Step 1: Determine Compliance with Ordinance Standards 

• Identify the specific standards outlined in the local ordinance. 

• Confirm the CUP application meets these standards. 

 

 Step 2: Identify Potential Detrimental Effects 

• Consider only those effects that are reasonably anticipated and substantiated by 

credible evidence. 

• Disregard speculative, vague, or unsupported concerns.  

Step 3: Assess Evidence 

Evidence must be: 

• Relevant: Directly related to the proposed use and its impact. 

• Credible: Objective and fact-based. 

• Independent: Not influenced by public opinion alone. 

 

Step 4: Impose Reasonable Conditions (if necessary – remember by providing for a CUP 

in our local ordinance, County already recognizes that there may be effects) 

Conditions must be: 

• Ordinance-Based: Directly linked to the standards outlined in the local 

ordinance. Conditions not specified in the ordinance or unrelated to the 

identified detrimental effects are improper and unenforceable. 

• Appropriate: Within local government's authority. 

• Relevant: Specifically address the detrimental effects identified. 

• Proportionate: Not excessively burdensome compared to the impact. 

• Reasonable: Not intended to undermine the viability of the use. 

 

 4. Decision Making 

Approval:  If conditions can mitigate the detrimental effects, the CUP must be approved. 

 Denial:  Can only occur if: 

• Detrimental effects cannot be substantially mitigated. 



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 3 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

• Conditions imposed do not adequately address the specific issues. 

 

 5. Documentation and Findings 

  Clearly document: 

• Substantial evidence supporting the determination. 

• Specific reasons for either approval or denial. 

• Conditions imposed and their rationale. 

• Maintain a detailed record to support the decision in case of appeal. 

 

6. Avoiding Common Pitfalls 

• Public Clamor: Do not base decisions solely on public outcry. 

• Unsubstantiated Concerns: Avoid considering issues not backed by factual evidence. 

• Consistency: Apply standards uniformly to avoid arbitrary decisions. 

 

 7. Post-Approval Management 

• Conditions run with the land and are enforceable with subsequent owners. 

• Monitor compliance and address violations as needed. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the information in this staff report, planning staff recommends that the Planning 

Commission approve the requested Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application for a sign on the 

rear of a commercial building subject to all applicable regulations and the following conditions: 

Conditions: 

1. That the proposed sign shall comply with the design, size, illumination, and 

placement standards outlined in § 155.368 Signs of the Morgan County Zoning 

Code, ensuring it is appropriately scaled to the building and does not create visual 

clutter or distractions.  

2. That the sign shall be securely mounted to the structure using materials and 

methods that meet current building safety standards and wind-load requirements, 

as outlined in the International Building Code (IBC), to prevent detachment or 

hazard during extreme weather events. 

3. That the location, lighting, and orientation of the sign shall not adversely impact 

adjacent residential areas, public rights-of-way, or neighboring businesses, 

ensuring protection of public health, safety, and general welfare through proper 

shielding of lights, minimized glare, and limited after-hours illumination. 

4. That the property adheres to all other County, State, and Federal requirements. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Staff has reviewed a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application submitted for the installation of a 

sign on the rear of a commercial building located within the Canyon View Commercial West 

subdivision in Morgan County. The 1.02-acre property is developed with existing commercial 

improvements and is situated within the Commercial Highway (CH) zoning district. 

Pursuant to Morgan County Code § 155.368(G)(5)(d), signs on the rear of commercial buildings 

are permitted only with Planning Commission approval: 



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 4 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

         (d)   Buildings or businesses with exposure on the sides and front may choose which 

wall to mount their sign upon. Signs are allowed on the rear of the building with Planning 

Commission approval. 

This application has been submitted to satisfy that requirement. 

 

The site plan for the commercial development was previously approved by the County 

Commission on June 4, 2024, which included the review of parking, landscaping, lighting, and 

supporting infrastructure. A front-facing sign was approved under file #SGN25.005 on August 19, 

2025. 

 

Access to the property is provided via West Canyon View Circle, a paved public road that is 

maintained year-round. Utilities are available from standard service providers in the area, 

including Highlands Water Company (water), Morgan General Sanitation Improvement District 

(MGSID) (sewer), and Rocky Mountain Power (electric). Fire protection services are provided by 

the Morgan General Fire Protection District (MGFPD). 

 

After review, staff finds that the proposed rear sign CUP is consistent with the intent of the CH 

zoning district and maintains compatibility with the surrounding commercial development. 

Approval of this application will allow the applicant to proceed with the installation of a rear-

mounted sign while preserving the visual and functional character of the area. These 

aforementioned additional conditions would need to comply with the following standards as 

contained within § 155.366(A) Conditional Uses: 

 “ A.   Conditions Relating To Safety For Persons And Property: 

1.   Building elevations and grading plans which will prevent or minimize 

floodwater damage, where property may be subject to flooding. 

2.   The relocation, covering or fencing of irrigation ditches, drainage channels, 

and other potential attractive nuisances existing on or adjacent to the property. 

3.   Increased setback distances from lot lines where the planning commission 

determines it to be necessary to ensure the public safety and to ensure 

compatibility with the intended characteristics of the district as outlined in this 

title. 

4.   Appropriate design, construction and location of structures, buildings and 

facilities in relation to any earthquake fault which may exist on the property, 

and limitations and/or restrictions on the use and/or location of uses due to 

special site conditions, including, but not limited to, geologically hazardous 

areas; floodplains; fault zones; landslide areas. 

5.   Limitations and control of the number, location, color, size, height, lighting and 

landscaping of outdoor advertising signs and structures in relation to the 

creation of traffic hazards and appearance and harmony with adjacent 

development. 

6.   Plans for the location, arrangement and dimensions of truck loading and 

unloading facilities. 

7.   Construction of curbs, gutters, drainage culverts, sidewalks, streets, fire 

hydrants and street lighting. 

8.   Reduction of permitted street grades for winter and storm conditions, or 

exposure. 



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 5 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

9.   Fences shall not create visual nor other safety hazards. 

10.   Backing movements, passing vehicles, sidewalk traffic, small children, etc., 

shall be considered in the location of fences and effects on circulation system. 

11.   Numbers and types of vehicles per time period associated with the conditional 

use activities. 

12.   Time of day and days of the week conditional use may operate.” 

 

Any conditions that staff or the Planning Commission come up with should aim to ensure that the 

vet clinic operates in a manner that is compatible with surrounding land uses and minimizes any 

potential negative impacts on the community and the environment. 

 

CODE ANALYSIS 

Standards Findings Rationale 
Ordinance Evaluation. Morgan County Code § 155.008 defines conditional use as the following: 

 

CONDITIONAL USE: A land use that, because of the unique characteristics or potential impact of the land use on 

the county, surrounding neighbors or adjacent land uses, may not be compatible in some areas, or may be 

compatible only if certain conditions are required that mitigate or eliminate the detrimental impacts. (A 

development or land use application which requires a conditional use permit, pursuant to this chapter.)  

155.366 (D)   Conditions Relating To Safety For Persons And Property: 

1(a) Building elevations and grading plans which will prevent 

or minimize floodwater damage, where property may be 

subject to flooding. 

N/A Existing structure 

1(b) The relocation, covering or fencing of irrigation ditches, 

drainage channels, and other potential attractive nuisances 

existing on or adjacent to the property. 

N/A  

1(c) Increased setback distances from lot lines where the 

planning commission determines it to be necessary to 

ensure the public safety and to ensure compatibility with 

the intended characteristics of the district as outlined in this 

title. 

N/A  

1(d) Appropriate design, construction and location of 

structures, buildings and facilities in relation to any 

earthquake fault which may exist on the property, and 

limitations and/or restrictions on the use and/or location of 

uses due to special site conditions, including, but not 

limited to, geologically hazardous areas; floodplains; fault 

zones; landslide areas. 

N/A Existing Structure 

1(e) Limitations and control of the number, location, color, size, 

height, lighting and landscaping of outdoor advertising 

signs and structures in relation to the creation of traffic 

hazards and appearance and harmony with adjacent 

development. 

N/A  

1(f) Plans for the location, arrangement and dimensions of 

truck loading and unloading facilities. 

Will 

Comply 
 

1(g) Construction of curbs, gutters, drainage culverts, 

sidewalks, streets, fire hydrants and street lighting. 

N/A  

1(h) Reduction of permitted street grades for winter and storm 

conditions, or exposure. 

N/A  

1(i) Fences shall not create visual nor other safety hazards. N/A  



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 6 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

1(j) Backing movements, passing vehicles, sidewalk traffic, 

small children, etc., shall be considered in the location of 

fences and effects on circulation system. 

N/A 

 
 

1(k) Numbers and types of vehicles per time period associated 

with the conditional use activities. 

Will 

Comply 

 

1(l) Time of day and days of the week conditional use may 

operate. 

Will 

Comply 

 

155.366 (D)   Conditions Relating To Health And Sanitation: 

2(a) A guarantee of sufficient water to serve the intended land 

use and a water delivery system meeting standards adopted 

by the governing body. 

Complies  

2(b) A wastewater disposal system and a solid waste disposal 

system meeting standards adopted by the governing body. 

Complies  

2(c) Construction of water mains, sewer mains and drainage 

facilities serving the proposed use, in sizes necessary to 

protect existing utility users in the district and to provide 

for an orderly development of land in the county. 

Complies  

155.366 (D)   Environmental Concerns: 

3(a) Limitations and/or restrictions on the use and/or location of 

uses in sensitive areas due to soils capabilities, wildlife and 

plant life. 

N/A 

 

 

3(b) Standards intended to conserve, enhance, restore and 

maintain significant natural and manmade features which 

are of public value, including among other things, river 

corridors, streams, lakes and islands, domestic water 

supply watersheds, flood storage areas, natural shorelines 

and unique vegetation, wetlands, wildlife and fish habitats, 

significant geological features, tourist attractions, 

archaeological features and sites, historic features and sites 

and scenic views and vistas, and to establish criteria and 

standards for the development, change of use, or alteration 

of such features. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(c) Processes for the control, elimination or prevention of land, 

water or air pollution; the prevention of soil erosion; and 

the control of objectionable odors. Processes for the 

control, elimination or prevention of land, water or air 

pollution; the prevention of soil erosion; and the control of 

objectionable odors. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(c)(1) These processes may include restrictions on degradation of 

water quality. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(c)(2) Developments which produce any discharge to any 

watercourse shall demonstrate compliance with all federal, 

state and county water quality standards as evidenced by 

the issuance of any permits required for their discharge by 

the federal government, state and/or county. 

N/A 

 

 

3(c)(3) Whenever sedimentation is caused by stripping vegetation, 

regrading or other development, it shall be the 

responsibility of the person, corporation or other entity 

causing such sedimentation to remove it from all adjoining 

surfaces and drainage systems prior to final approvals for 

the project. It is the responsibility of any person, 

corporation or other entity doing any act on or across a 

stream, watercourse or swale, or upon the floodplain or 

right of way thereof, to maintain as nearly as possible in its 

present state the stream, watercourse, swale, floodplain or 

right of way during such activity. 

Will 

Comply 

 



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 7 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

3(d) The planting of ground cover or other surfacing to prevent 

dust and erosion. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(1) The proposed land disturbing activity will ensure and 

provide an undisturbed vegetation buffer from the top of 

the bank of a stream, wetland or other water body, unless a 

mitigation plan is approved for alterations within the buffer 

area. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(2) Whenever feasible, natural vegetation will be retained and 

protected. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(3) Temporary vegetation and/or mulching shall be used to 

protect exposed critical areas during development. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(4) Plans will be made to accommodate increased runoff and 

sedimentation caused by altered soil and surface conditions 

during and after the proposed activity. 

N/A 

 

 

3(e) Restructuring of the land and planting of the same as 

directed by the planning commission when the conditional 

use involves cutting and/or filling the land and where such 

land would be adversely affected if not restructured. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(f) Limitations and/or restrictions on construction and/or 

development on slopes in excess of thirty percent (30%) to 

control erosion. 

N/A 

 

 

3(g) If the proposed conditional use involves hillside 

construction and/or development, the application will be 

approved only after the applicant provides: 

N/A 

 

 

3(g)(1) Topographic information showing that the proposed 

activity is on land with a slope less than thirty percent 

(30%) and that it is located more than two hundred feet 

(200') from a known landslide. 

N/A 

 

 

3(g)(2) A geologic/geotechnical report which shall be in form and 

content approved by the county engineer, consisting of, 

among other things, a slope stability study, earthquake 

analysis and sedimentation analysis, prepared by a certified 

engineering geologist or geotechnical engineer approved 

by the county engineer, certifying that the site or route in 

its entirety is suitable for the proposed development. 

Complies  

3(g)(3) Such other engineering or technical reports as may be 

required by the planning commission or governing body. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(g)(4) Detailed construction plans, drawings and specifications 

which outline all construction methods proposed to be 

utilized. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(h) In all cases, the applicant may be required to supply a 

geologic report, a geotechnical study, a hydrological study, 

a civil engineering study and other applicable engineering 

studies required by the planning commission or governing 

body acceptable in form and content to the county 

engineer. 

N/A 

 

 

3(i) The applicant's conditional use may be limited or denied if 

blasting, drilling or any other construction activity 

involved will weaken, or cause, adjoining slopes, geologic 

formations and manmade improvements to become 

unstable or if the proposed construction or operation will 

result in the creation of a geologic hazard to surrounding 

properties, such as through slumping, sliding or drainage 

modifications. 

N/A  

 

PUBLIC NOTICE, MEETINGS, COMMENTS 



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 8 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

✓ Public Notice was submitted to the State of Utah Public Notice website on or before 

October 13, 2025; a minimum of 10 days prior to the scheduled meeting. (Morgan County 

Code § 155.032 (C)). 

✓ A Public Notice was posted at the County on or before October 13, 2025.  

✓ Notices to property owners within 1000’ feet of the proposed use were mailed a Public 

Notice on or before October 13, 2025.  

✓ A sign was posted on the site on or before October 13, 2025. 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION   

 

Recommended Motion for Approval – “I move we approve the Mountain Green Animal Hospital 

Sign CUP, application #CUP25.008, to allow a sign on the rear of a commercial building at the 

property located at 5714 West Canyon View Circle in Mountain Green, based on the findings and 

with the conditions listed in the staff report dated October 23, 2025.” 

 

Recommended Motion for Approval with Conditions– “I move we approve the Mountain Green 

Animal Hospital Sign CUP, application #CUP25.008, to allow a sign on the rear of a commercial 

building at the property located at 5714 West Canyon View Circle in Mountain Green, based on 

the findings and with the conditions listed in the staff report dated October 23, 2025, and as 

modified by the conditions and findings below:” 

 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 

 

Recommended Motion for Denial – “I move we deny the Mountain Green Animal Hospital Sign 

CUP, application #CUP25.008, to not allow for a sign on the rear of a commercial building at the 

property located at 5714 West Canyon View Circle in Mountain Green subject to the following 

findings: 

 

1. List any additional findings… 

 

 

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

Exhibit A: Vicinity Map 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

Exhibit C: Applicant Narrative 

Exhibit D: Graphic Representation of Proposal 

Exhibit E: Application



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 9 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit A: Vicinity Map 

   



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 10 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

   

Residential (R1-20) 

Highway Commercial (CH) 

Light Manufacturing (LM) 

Agriculture (A-20) 

Rural Residential 

(RR-1) 

 

Residential (R1-10) 

Forestry (F-1) 

Site 
1.02 ac 



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 11 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit C: Applicant Narrative 

   

   



Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 12 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit D: Graphic Representation of Proposal 

 

 

  

Click here to view a full-size .pdf 

version of the Sign Package 

https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/EUe2lzzRDXFDj1DgMArJDE8B2xhTAMghCAAGnKSPlBONVw?e=Ygr6t1
https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/EUe2lzzRDXFDj1DgMArJDE8B2xhTAMghCAAGnKSPlBONVw?e=Ygr6t1


Mtn Green Animal Hospital Sign CUP  P a g e  | 13 

Application #CUP25.008 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit E: Application 

 

 

 

Click here to view a full-size .pdf 

version of the Application 

https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/ERrFz1NsnGFNt9rC6-bHACEBH9jG5FbSCVWqILqVrohJVQ?e=oYCDwZ
https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/ERrFz1NsnGFNt9rC6-bHACEBH9jG5FbSCVWqILqVrohJVQ?e=oYCDwZ


Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 1 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  

Public Meeting 

File #CUP25.009 

 

Applicant/Owner:   Leslie Harris 

Project Location: Approx. 3100 N Lost Creek Rd 

Parcel Number:  00-0002-4354 

Serial Numbers: 01-004-688 

Current Zoning: Rural Residential (RR-1) / Agriculture (A-20) 

Acreage:   247.25 acres 

  

 

 
REQUEST 

A request for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (C3) that is required for the use of a private 

gravel pit. 

 

ATTORNEY GUIDANCE: 

Administrative Review: CUPs are subject to administrative review. 

The sole issue in land use administration is whether the application complies with county 

ordinances. If it does, it must be approved.  The only circumstance in which an application 

could be denied is if a land use authority find that a compelling, countervailing public 

interest would be jeopardized.  In determining whether this circumstance exists, the courts 

have stated, “If a proposal met zoning requirements at the time of application but seriously 

threatens public health, safety, or welfare, the interests of the public should not be 

thwarted.”  W. Land Equities v. Logan, 617 P.2d 388, 395-96 (Utah Sup.Ct. 1980).” 

Essentially, the only situation in which such an application can be denied is the application 

seriously threatens public health, safety or welfare.   

While CUPs are subject to administrative review, they are an exception to the general zoning rule. 

By allowing them through ordinance, our County legislature has acknowledged that CUPs may 

have some impacts but has decided they are permissible. To address any detrimental effects that 

may arise, the legislature has also allowed for reasonable conditions to be imposed when those 

effects are reasonably anticipated.  In doing so, our County is following State law, which provides, 

“A land use authority shall approve a conditional use if reasonable conditions are proposed, or can 

be imposed, to mitigate the reasonably anticipated detrimental effects of the proposed use in 

accordance with applicable standards.” Utah Code Ann. § 17-27a-506(2)(a)(i). 

PLANNNG COMMISSION  
STAFF REPORT 
Conditional Use Permit 

October 23, 2025 



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 2 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

1. Introduction 

• Conditional uses are presumed to be appropriate and desirable in the designated zoning 

area. 

• CUPs must be approved if they meet the requirements outlined in the local ordinance. 

• Conditions may be imposed to mitigate reasonably anticipated detrimental effects. 

 

2. Guiding Principles 

• Presumption of Approval: A CUP must be approved unless detrimental effects cannot be 

substantially mitigated. 

• Reasonably Anticipated Detrimental Effects (RADEs):  

o Must be supported by substantial evidence. 

o Public clamor, opinion, or general opposition do not constitute substantial 

evidence. 

o Mitigation, Not Elimination: Conditions should substantially mitigate RADEs, but 

do not have to completely eliminate the detrimental effects. 

 

 3. Review Process 

  Step 1: Determine Compliance with Ordinance Standards 

• Identify the specific standards outlined in the local ordinance. 

• Confirm the CUP application meets these standards. 

 

 Step 2: Identify Potential Detrimental Effects 

• Consider only those effects that are reasonably anticipated and substantiated by 

credible evidence. 

• Disregard speculative, vague, or unsupported concerns.  

Step 3: Assess Evidence 

Evidence must be: 

• Relevant: Directly related to the proposed use and its impact. 

• Credible: Objective and fact-based. 

• Independent: Not influenced by public opinion alone. 

 

Step 4: Impose Reasonable Conditions (if necessary – remember by providing for a CUP 

in our local ordinance, County already recognizes that there may be effects) 

Conditions must be: 

• Ordinance-Based: Directly linked to the standards outlined in the local 

ordinance. Conditions not specified in the ordinance or unrelated to the 

identified detrimental effects are improper and unenforceable. 

• Appropriate: Within local government's authority. 

• Relevant: Specifically address the detrimental effects identified. 

• Proportionate: Not excessively burdensome compared to the impact. 

• Reasonable: Not intended to undermine the viability of the use. 

 

 4. Decision Making 

Approval:  If conditions can mitigate the detrimental effects, the CUP must be approved. 

 Denial:  Can only occur if: 

  



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 3 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

 

• Detrimental effects cannot be substantially mitigated. 

• Conditions imposed do not adequately address the specific issues. 

 

 5. Documentation and Findings 

  Clearly document: 

• Substantial evidence supporting the determination. 

• Specific reasons for either approval or denial. 

• Conditions imposed and their rationale. 

• Maintain a detailed record to support the decision in case of appeal. 

 

6. Avoiding Common Pitfalls 

• Public Clamor: Do not base decisions solely on public outcry. 

• Unsubstantiated Concerns: Avoid considering issues not backed by factual evidence. 

• Consistency: Apply standards uniformly to avoid arbitrary decisions. 

 

 7. Post-Approval Management 

• Conditions run with the land and are enforceable with subsequent owners. 

• Monitor compliance and address violations as needed. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the information in this staff report, planning staff recommends that the Planning 

Commission approve the requested Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application for a private gravel 

pit subject to all applicable regulations and the following conditions: 

Conditions: 

1. That the grading and excavation activities shall fully comply with the standards 

and requirements outlined in § 155.086(G) of the Morgan County Code, including 

limits on excavation depth, slope, and fill compaction. 

2. That the property owner shall implement and maintain effective dust control 

measures, such as watering or other approved methods, throughout all phases of 

excavation and hauling to minimize dust impacts on surrounding properties and 

roadways. 

3. That the hours of operation for grading, excavation, and hauling shall be limited 

to 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

4. That all disturbed or exposed soils shall be promptly stabilized and revegetated 

using plant species approved by the Planning Commission to control erosion and 

preserve the natural appearance of the site. 

5. That approved grading and excavation plans shall be maintained on-site at all 

times during active operations, and the Conditional Use Permit shall be 

prominently posted near the primary site access visible from the public road. 

6. That inspections by county officials shall be coordinated and completed prior to 

commencement of work, after completion of rough grading, and following final 

stabilization to ensure compliance with all permit conditions. 

7. That the property adheres to all other County, State, and Federal requirements. 

8. That the operation shall be conducted in a manner that protects the health, safety, 

and general welfare of the public and neighboring properties. 



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 4 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Staff has reviewed a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application for a private gravel pit located on 

a 247.25-acre property in Morgan County. The project site is currently developed with respect to 

commercial excavation uses but is proposed to be developed for a private gravel pit operation 

involving grading, excavation, and associated site improvements. The parcel offers year-round 

access via North Lost Creek Road, a county-maintained road, and is situated in proximity to 

existing county infrastructure and services. 

 

This application is reviewed under the provisions of Morgan County Code, specifically § 

155.086(G) — Landfills and Land Excavations, which sets forth standards and requirements to 

promote public safety and general welfare, protect property from erosion, earth movement, and 

flooding, maintain the community environment, and preserve the natural scenic character of the 

county (see the entirety of the code section included as exhibit “F”). This subchapter also 

establishes minimum grading and excavation standards and procedures to ensure harmonious 

development with adjacent lands while minimizing hazards related to drainage, erosion, and earth 

movement. 

 

The proposed gravel pit operation involves excavation exceeding 1,000 cubic yards, an excavation 

area larger than one acre, and the removal of vegetation from an area exceeding one acre, thus 

requiring a Conditional Use Permit under the code section cited. The applicant’s grading and 

excavation plan includes mitigation measures such as controlled slopes, erosion control planting, 

and dust suppression designed to prevent off-site impacts and maintain site stability. 

 

The applicant will be required to comply with the operating hours limitations stipulated for grading 

and excavation activities adjacent to residential areas, generally limited to 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. 

on weekdays, unless otherwise approved. All disturbed surfaces will be managed to prevent dust, 

dirt, and debris from impacting neighboring properties and roadways. Site slopes will be 

engineered according to the county’s standards, including provisions for slope compaction, 

drainage structures, and revegetation with approved plant species to maintain the natural 

appearance and reduce erosion risks. 

 

Inspections by county officials will be conducted at key stages of grading operations to verify 

compliance with approved plans and conditions. The applicant must maintain grading plans on-

site and prominently display the permit approval near the property entrance during active 

operations. 

 

Staff finds that the proposed CUP application aligns with the intent of § 155.086(G) by ensuring 

that excavation and grading activities are conducted in a manner that protects public safety, 

adjacent properties, and the natural environment. Conditions of approval will address compliance 

with erosion control, slope stability, dust management, and operational timeframes to mitigate 

potential adverse impacts. 

 

Approval of this CUP will allow the applicant to proceed with the development of a private gravel 

pit operation on the property, subject to ongoing compliance with county standards and conditions 

to safeguard the community and environment. These aforementioned additional conditions would 

need to comply with the following standards as contained within § 155.366(A) Conditional Uses: 

  



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 5 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

 

 “ A.   Conditions Relating To Safety For Persons And Property: 

1.   Building elevations and grading plans which will prevent or minimize 

floodwater damage, where property may be subject to flooding. 

2.   The relocation, covering or fencing of irrigation ditches, drainage channels, 

and other potential attractive nuisances existing on or adjacent to the property. 

3.   Increased setback distances from lot lines where the planning commission 

determines it to be necessary to ensure the public safety and to ensure 

compatibility with the intended characteristics of the district as outlined in this 

title. 

4.   Appropriate design, construction and location of structures, buildings and 

facilities in relation to any earthquake fault which may exist on the property, 

and limitations and/or restrictions on the use and/or location of uses due to 

special site conditions, including, but not limited to, geologically hazardous 

areas; floodplains; fault zones; landslide areas. 

5.   Limitations and control of the number, location, color, size, height, lighting and 

landscaping of outdoor advertising signs and structures in relation to the 

creation of traffic hazards and appearance and harmony with adjacent 

development. 

6.   Plans for the location, arrangement and dimensions of truck loading and 

unloading facilities. 

7.   Construction of curbs, gutters, drainage culverts, sidewalks, streets, fire 

hydrants and street lighting. 

8.   Reduction of permitted street grades for winter and storm conditions, or 

exposure. 

9.   Fences shall not create visual nor other safety hazards. 

10.   Backing movements, passing vehicles, sidewalk traffic, small children, etc., 

shall be considered in the location of fences and effects on circulation system. 

11.   Numbers and types of vehicles per time period associated with the conditional 

use activities. 

12.   Time of day and days of the week conditional use may operate.” 

 

Any conditions that staff or the Planning Commission come up with should aim to ensure that the 

private gravel pit operates in a manner that is compatible with surrounding land uses and minimizes 

any potential negative impacts on the community and the environment. 

 

CODE ANALYSIS 

Standards Findings Rationale 
Ordinance Evaluation. Morgan County Code § 155.008 defines conditional use as the following: 

 

CONDITIONAL USE: A land use that, because of the unique characteristics or potential impact of the land use on 

the county, surrounding neighbors or adjacent land uses, may not be compatible in some areas, or may be 

compatible only if certain conditions are required that mitigate or eliminate the detrimental impacts. (A 

development or land use application which requires a conditional use permit, pursuant to this chapter.)  

155.366 (D)   Conditions Relating To Safety For Persons And Property: 



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 6 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

1(a) Building elevations and grading plans which will prevent 

or minimize floodwater damage, where property may be 

subject to flooding. 

Will 

Comply 

Staff will review at the time of 

site plan and building permit. 

1(b) The relocation, covering or fencing of irrigation ditches, 

drainage channels, and other potential attractive nuisances 

existing on or adjacent to the property. 

N/A  

1(c) Increased setback distances from lot lines where the 

planning commission determines it to be necessary to 

ensure the public safety and to ensure compatibility with 

the intended characteristics of the district as outlined in this 

title. 

N/A  

1(d) Appropriate design, construction and location of 

structures, buildings and facilities in relation to any 

earthquake fault which may exist on the property, and 

limitations and/or restrictions on the use and/or location of 

uses due to special site conditions, including, but not 

limited to, geologically hazardous areas; floodplains; fault 

zones; landslide areas. 

Existing  

1(e) Limitations and control of the number, location, color, size, 

height, lighting and landscaping of outdoor advertising 

signs and structures in relation to the creation of traffic 

hazards and appearance and harmony with adjacent 

development. 

N/A  

1(f) Plans for the location, arrangement and dimensions of 

truck loading and unloading facilities. 

Will 

Comply 
 

1(g) Construction of curbs, gutters, drainage culverts, 

sidewalks, streets, fire hydrants and street lighting. 

N/A  

1(h) Reduction of permitted street grades for winter and storm 

conditions, or exposure. 

N/A  

1(i) Fences shall not create visual nor other safety hazards. N/A  

1(j) Backing movements, passing vehicles, sidewalk traffic, 

small children, etc., shall be considered in the location of 

fences and effects on circulation system. 

N/A 

 
 

1(k) Numbers and types of vehicles per time period associated 

with the conditional use activities. 

Will 

Comply 

 

1(l) Time of day and days of the week conditional use may 

operate. 

Will 

Comply 

 

155.366 (D)   Conditions Relating To Health And Sanitation: 

2(a) A guarantee of sufficient water to serve the intended land 

use and a water delivery system meeting standards adopted 

by the governing body. 

Will 

Comply 

 

2(b) A wastewater disposal system and a solid waste disposal 

system meeting standards adopted by the governing body. 

Will 

Comply 

 

2(c) Construction of water mains, sewer mains and drainage 

facilities serving the proposed use, in sizes necessary to 

protect existing utility users in the district and to provide 

for an orderly development of land in the county. 

N/A  

155.366 (D)   Environmental Concerns: 

3(a) Limitations and/or restrictions on the use and/or location of 

uses in sensitive areas due to soils capabilities, wildlife and 

plant life. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(b) Standards intended to conserve, enhance, restore and 

maintain significant natural and manmade features which 

are of public value, including among other things, river 

corridors, streams, lakes and islands, domestic water 

supply watersheds, flood storage areas, natural shorelines 

Will 

Comply 

 



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 7 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

and unique vegetation, wetlands, wildlife and fish habitats, 

significant geological features, tourist attractions, 

archaeological features and sites, historic features and sites 

and scenic views and vistas, and to establish criteria and 

standards for the development, change of use, or alteration 

of such features. 

3(c) Processes for the control, elimination or prevention of land, 

water or air pollution; the prevention of soil erosion; and 

the control of objectionable odors. Processes for the 

control, elimination or prevention of land, water or air 

pollution; the prevention of soil erosion; and the control of 

objectionable odors. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(c)(1) These processes may include restrictions on degradation of 

water quality. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(c)(2) Developments which produce any discharge to any 

watercourse shall demonstrate compliance with all federal, 

state and county water quality standards as evidenced by 

the issuance of any permits required for their discharge by 

the federal government, state and/or county. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(c)(3) Whenever sedimentation is caused by stripping vegetation, 

regrading or other development, it shall be the 

responsibility of the person, corporation or other entity 

causing such sedimentation to remove it from all adjoining 

surfaces and drainage systems prior to final approvals for 

the project. It is the responsibility of any person, 

corporation or other entity doing any act on or across a 

stream, watercourse or swale, or upon the floodplain or 

right of way thereof, to maintain as nearly as possible in its 

present state the stream, watercourse, swale, floodplain or 

right of way during such activity. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d) The planting of ground cover or other surfacing to prevent 

dust and erosion. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(1) The proposed land disturbing activity will ensure and 

provide an undisturbed vegetation buffer from the top of 

the bank of a stream, wetland or other water body, unless a 

mitigation plan is approved for alterations within the buffer 

area. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(2) Whenever feasible, natural vegetation will be retained and 

protected. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(3) Temporary vegetation and/or mulching shall be used to 

protect exposed critical areas during development. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(4) Plans will be made to accommodate increased runoff and 

sedimentation caused by altered soil and surface conditions 

during and after the proposed activity. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(e) Restructuring of the land and planting of the same as 

directed by the planning commission when the conditional 

use involves cutting and/or filling the land and where such 

land would be adversely affected if not restructured. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(f) Limitations and/or restrictions on construction and/or 

development on slopes in excess of thirty percent (30%) to 

control erosion. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(g) If the proposed conditional use involves hillside 

construction and/or development, the application will be 

approved only after the applicant provides: 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(g)(1) Topographic information showing that the proposed 

activity is on land with a slope less than thirty percent 

Will 

Comply 

 



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 8 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

(30%) and that it is located more than two hundred feet 

(200') from a known landslide. 

3(g)(2) A geologic/geotechnical report which shall be in form and 

content approved by the county engineer, consisting of, 

among other things, a slope stability study, earthquake 

analysis and sedimentation analysis, prepared by a certified 

engineering geologist or geotechnical engineer approved 

by the county engineer, certifying that the site or route in 

its entirety is suitable for the proposed development. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(g)(3) Such other engineering or technical reports as may be 

required by the planning commission or governing body. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(g)(4) Detailed construction plans, drawings and specifications 

which outline all construction methods proposed to be 

utilized. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(h) In all cases, the applicant may be required to supply a 

geologic report, a geotechnical study, a hydrological study, 

a civil engineering study and other applicable engineering 

studies required by the planning commission or governing 

body acceptable in form and content to the county 

engineer. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(i) The applicant's conditional use may be limited or denied if 

blasting, drilling or any other construction activity 

involved will weaken, or cause, adjoining slopes, geologic 

formations and manmade improvements to become 

unstable or if the proposed construction or operation will 

result in the creation of a geologic hazard to surrounding 

properties, such as through slumping, sliding or drainage 

modifications. 

Will 

Comply 

 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE, MEETINGS, COMMENTS 

✓ Public Notice was submitted to the State of Utah Public Notice website on or before 

October 13, 2025; a minimum of 10 days prior to the scheduled meeting. (Morgan County 

Code § 155.032 (C)). 

✓ A Public Notice was posted at the County on or before October 13, 2025.  

✓ Notices to property owners within 1000’ feet of the proposed use were mailed a Public 

Notice on or before October 13, 2025.  

✓ A sign was posted on the site on or before October 13, 2025. 

 

  



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 9 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

RECOMMENDED MOTION   

 

Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we recommend approval to the County 

Commission of the Croydon Gravel Pit CUP, application #CUP25.009, to allow for the use of a 

private gravel pit at property located approximately at 3100 N Lost Creek Rd in unincorporated 

Morgan County, based on the findings and with the conditions listed in the staff report dated 

October 23, 2025.” 

 

Motion for a Positive Recommendation with Conditions – “I move we recommend approval to 

the County Commission of the Croydon Gravel Pit CUP, application #CUP25.009, to allow for 

the use of a private gravel pit at property located approximately at 3100 N Lost Creek Rd in 

unincorporated Morgan County, based on the findings and with the conditions listed in the staff 

report dated October 23, 2025, and as modified by the conditions and findings below:” 

 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 

 

Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we recommend denial to the County 

Commission of the Croydon Gravel Pit CUP, application #CUP25.009, to not allow for a private 

gravel pit at property located approximately at 3100 N Lost Creek Rd in unincorporated Morgan 

County subject to the following findings: 

 

1. List any additional findings… 

 

 

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

Exhibit A: Vicinity Map 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

Exhibit C: Applicant Narrative 

Exhibit D: Graphic Representation of Proposal 

Exhibit E: § 155.366(G) Conditional Uses. 

Exhibit F: Application



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 10 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit A: Vicinity Map 

   

Croydon 

Holcim 

Cement 

Plant & 

Quarry 

I-84 Interchange 

1900 N 

7000 E 

N Lost Creek Rd 

Project Site 

Croydon Rd 



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 11 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

  

Rural Residential (RR-5) 

Forestry (F-1) 

Agriculture (A-20) 

Rural Residential (RR-1) 

Forestry (F-1) 

Agriculture (A-20) 

Site 

247.25 ac  



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 12 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit C: Applicant Narrative 

   



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 13 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit D: Graphic Representation of Proposal 

 

 

  

Click here to view a full-size .pdf version of the 

Improvement Plans 

https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/EVbWBijYETdDpvUQdMOpwjgBp8n30ukF-gazIGn0kduvfw?e=gA21Ab
https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/EVbWBijYETdDpvUQdMOpwjgBp8n30ukF-gazIGn0kduvfw?e=gA21Ab


Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 14 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit E: § 155.366(G) Conditional Uses. 

 

   (G)   Landfills and land excavations. 

      (1)   Purpose and intent. This division (G) is adopted to promote public safety and the 

general public welfare; to protect property against loss from erosion, earth movement and 

flooding; to maintain a superior community environment; to provide for the continued orderly 

growth of the county; and to ensure the maximum preservation of the natural scenic character of 

major portions of the county by establishing minimum standards and requirements relating to 

land grading, excavations and fills and procedures by which these standards and requirements 

may be enforced. It is intended that this division (G) be administered with the foregoing purposes 

in mind and specifically in an attempt to: 

         (a)   Ensure that the development of each site occurs in a manner harmonious with adjacent 

lands so as to minimize problems of drainage, erosion, earth movement and similar hazards; 

         (b)   Ensure the public lands and places, watercourses, streets and all other lands in the 

county are protected from erosion, earth movement or drainage hazards; 

         (c)   Ensure that the planning, design and construction of all development will be done in a 

manner which provides maximum safety and human enjoyment and except where specifically 

intended otherwise, makes such construction as unobtrusive in the natural terrain as possible; and 

         (d)   Ensure, insofar as practicable, the maximum retention of natural vegetation to aid in 

protection against erosion, earth movement and other hazards and to aid in preservation of the 

natural scenic qualities of the county. 

      (2)   Permit required; exceptions. 

         (a)   No person shall commence or perform any grading or excavation, including those in 

gravel pits and rock quarries, in excess of the limits specified below without first obtaining 

a conditional use permit for such grading or excavation. 

         (b)   In this division (G), all references to conditional use permit shall mean 

a conditional use permit for grading or excavation. (See also the Building Code.) 

         (c)   A conditional use permit shall be required in all cases where development comes 

under any one or more of the following provisions, unless such work is otherwise exempted 

elsewhere in this section: 

            1.   Excavation, fill or any combination thereof exceeding 1,000 cubic yards; 

            2.   Fill exceeding five feet in vertical depth at its deepest point measured from the 

adjacent undisturbed ground surface; 

            3.   An excavation exceeding five feet in vertical depth at its deepest point; 

            4.   An excavation, fill or combination thereof exceeding an area of one acre; and 

            5.   Vegetation removal from an area in excess of one acre. 

         (d)   A conditional use permit shall not be required in the following cases: 

            1.   Excavations below finished grade for which a building permit is required and has 

been issued by the county, including, but not limited to, the following: 

               a.   Septic tanks and drainfields; 

               b.   Tanks; 

               c.   Vaults; 

               d.   Tunnels; 

               e.   Equipment basements; 

               f.   Swimming pools; 

               g.   Cellars; or 

               h.   Footings for buildings or structures. 



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 15 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

            2.   Excavation or removal of vegetation within property owned by public utility 

companies or within public utility easements by public utility companies; 

            3.   Removal of vegetation as a part of the work authorized by an approved 

building permit; 

            4.   Tilling of soil or cutting of vegetation for agricultural or fire protection purposes; 

            5.   Commercial quarries operating with valid conditional use permits and/or in 

appropriate Industrial Zones as provided for in this chapter; 

            6.   Engineered interior fills or surcharge on the property with respect to industrial 

development; 

            7.   Items not covered by this section which are exempted from required permits by this 

chapter and the Building Code of the county; and 

            8.   Grading and/or excavation done pursuant to an approved final subdivision plan. 

      (3)   Responsibility. Failure of the county officials to observe or recognize hazardous or 

unsightly conditions, or to recommend denial of the conditional use permit, or of the Planning 

Commission to deny said permit, shall not relieve the permittee from responsibility for 

the condition or damages resulting therefrom. 

      (4)   Retention of plans. Plans, specifications and reports for all 

excavation conditional use permit applications submitted to the county for approval shall be 

retained by the county for a minimum period of two years. 

      (5)   Inspections. 

         (a)   The Zoning Administrator and Building Official, with assistance from the County 

Engineer, shall make the inspections hereinafter required and shall either approve that portion of 

the work completed or shall notify the permittee wherein the same fails to comply with this 

section. Where it is found by inspection that conditions are not substantially as stated or shown 

in the conditional use permit application, the inspector may stop further work until and unless 

approval is obtained for a revised grading plan conforming to the existing conditions. 

         (b)   Plans for grading work, bearing the stamp of approval of the Planning Commission, 

shall be maintained at the site during the progress of the grading. Until the final inspection is 

made, a card issued by the county indicating permission to grade has been granted shall be 

prominently displayed near the front property line of the property involved so as to be visible 

from the street on which the property fronts. 

         (c)   In order to obtain inspections, the permittee shall notify the county at least 24 hours 

before said inspection is to be made. 

         (d)   Inspections shall be made. 

            1.   Before commencement of grading operations and after required construction stakes 

have been set; 

            2.   When all rough grading has been completed; and 

            3.   When all work, including installation of all drainage and other structures and required 

planting has been completed. 

      (6)   Standards and specific requirements. 

         (a)   Applicability. All grading and excavation shall comply with the requirements set forth 

in this section in addition to other requirements of this chapter. 

         (b)   Hours and days of operation. 

            1.   All grading and excavation in or contiguous to residential neighborhoods shall be 

carried on between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. The Zoning Administrator may waive this 

requirement if it is shown that restricting the hours of operation would unduly interfere with the 



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 16 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

development of the property and it is shown that other properties or neighborhood values would 

not be adversely affected. 

            2.   All grading and excavation in or contiguous to residential neighborhoods shall be 

carried on only Monday through Friday during the week. 

         (c)   Dust and dirt control. All graded or disturbed surfaces of excavations, and all 

equipment materials and roadways on the site shall be dampened or suitably treated, managed or 

contained to prevent the deposit of debris, dust or dirt on neighboring streets and properties; all 

materials transported to or from the site shall be so contained during transportation as to prevent 

spillage on streets or other property outside of the site. 

         (d)   Slopes. The Zoning Administrator may require the percent of slope of a cut or fill to be 

reduced if it is found that the cut or fill is subject to unusual or excessive erosion, or if 

other conditions make such requirements necessary for stability. The Zoning Administrator 

may permit steeper slopes where the material being cut is unusually stable. 

         (e)   Fill material. All fill, except in publicly approved refuse disposal or other landfill 

operations, shall be earth, rock or other inert materials free from organic material and free of 

metal, and except that topsoil spread on cut and fill surfaces may incorporate humus for desirable 

moisture retention and plant growth properties. 

         (f)   Drainage. Adequate provisions shall be made to prevent any surface waters from 

damaging the cut face of an excavation or any portion of a fill. All drainageways and structures 

shall carry surface waters without producing erosion to the nearest practical street, storm drain or 

natural watercourse acceptable to the County Engineer as a safe place to deposit and receive such 

waters. The County Engineer may require such drainage structures to be constructed or installed 

as necessary to prevent erosion damage or to prevent saturation of the fill or material behind cut 

slopes. 

         (g)   Finished cuts and slopes. The exposed or finished cuts or slopes of any fill or 

excavation shall be smoothly graded. All exposed slopes of any cut or fill shall be protected by 

approved planting, crib walls or walls and planting, terracing or combination thereof. 

         (h)   Backfilling. Any pipe trench or other trenching or excavation made in any slope of any 

excavation or filled site shall be backfilled and compacted to the level of the surrounding grade. 

         (i)   Compaction of fills. Unless otherwise directed by the Zoning Administrator, all fills 

governed by this chapter intended to support buildings, structures or where otherwise required to 

be compacted for stability, shall be compacted, inspected and tested in accordance with the 

following provisions: 

            1.   The natural ground surface shall be prepared by removal of topsoil and vegetation 

and, if necessary, shall be graded to a series of terraces; 

            2.   The fill shall be spread in a series of layers, each not exceeding six inches in 

thickness, and shall be compacted by “sheepsfoot” roller compactor (after each layer is spread) 

or other method acceptable to the County Engineer; 

            3.   The moisture content of the fill material shall be controlled at the time of spreading 

and compaction to obtain required maximum density; 

            4.   The fill material after compaction shall have an average dry density of not less than 

95% of maximum dry density and a minimum of 90% in all portions of the fill requiring 

compaction as determined by the AASHO soil compaction test method T99-57 or T180-57, or 

other testing method acceptable to the County Engineer and Zoning Administrator; 

            5.   A written report of the compaction, showing location and depth of test holes, 

materials used, moisture conditions, recommended soil bearing pressures and relative density 



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 17 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

obtained from all tests, prepared by a civil engineer or soils engineer licensed by the state, shall 

be submitted to the Zoning Administrator or County Engineer; and 

            6.   The Zoning Administrator may require additional tests or information if, in his or her 

opinion, the conditions or materials are such that additional information is necessary and may 

modify or delete any of the above listed requirements that in his or her opinion are unnecessary 

to further the purpose of this chapter. 

         (j)   Erosion control and landscaping. All cut and fill surfaces created by grading, except 

for firebreak purposes, shall be planted with a ground cover that is compatible with the natural 

ground covers in the county. Topsoil is to be stockpiled during rough grading and used on cut 

and fill slopes. When slopes too steep to support continuous ground cover have 

been permitted and in lieu thereof niches and ledges provided for planting, such slopes need not 

be planted with a continuous ground cover but may instead be screened with vines and plantings. 

Cuts and fills along public roads may be required to be landscaped so as to blend into the natural 

surroundings. All plant materials must be approved by the Planning Commission prior to 

issuance of a conditional use permit. 

         (k)   Filling for agricultural and fire protection purposes. Filling of the ground for 

agricultural or fire protection purposes shall be accomplished with such practices as will prevent 

erosion and damage to natural drainage channels. 

         (l)   Final inspection. 

            1.   If upon final inspection of any grading it is found that the work authorized by 

the conditional use permit has been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the requirements 

of this chapter, and any other requirements imposed, the Zoning Administrator shall so record in 

the record. 

            2.   The Zoning Administrator shall have the power to revoke 

any conditional use permit whenever it is found that the work covered by the certificate has been 

materially extended or altered without prior approval, or that any planting, retaining walls, 

cribbing, drainage structures or other protective devices as shown on the approved plans and 

specifications submitted with the application for a permit have not been maintained in good order 

and repair. 

            3.   Before such revocation, the Zoning Administrator shall first give written notice to the 

owner of the property involved, specifying the defective condition and stating that unless such 

defective condition is remedied satisfactorily, the conditional use permit may be revoked. If the 

defective condition is remedied to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator, the certificate 

shall not be revoked. 

         (m)   Special precautions. Special precautions shall be taken to preserve life, property 

values, stable soils conditions and aesthetics, including, but not limited to, the following: 

            1.   Requiring a more level exposed slope, construction of additional drainage facilities, 

berms, terracing, compaction or cribbing, installation of plant materials for erosion control, and 

reports of a registered soils engineer and/or engineering geologist whose recommendation may 

be made a requirement for further work. Such requirement by the Zoning Administrator shall 

constitute a change order in the work; and 

            2.   Where it appears that storm damage may result from work performed hereunder, such 

work may be stopped and the permittee required to take such measures as may be necessary to 

protect adjoining property or the public safety. On large operations or where unusual 

site conditions prevail, the Zoning Administrator may specify the time at which grading may 

proceed and the time of completion or may require that the operation be conducted in specific 



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 18 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

stages so as to ensure completion of protective measures or devices prior to the advent of 

seasonal rains. 

         (n)   Excavations. All excavations shall be limited as follows: 

            1.   No cut slope shall exceed a vertical height of 100 feet unless horizontal benches with 

a minimum width of 30 feet are installed at each 100 feet of vertical height. No excavation shall 

be made with a cut face steeper in slope than two horizontal to one vertical; 

            2.   The land use authority may permit the excavation to be made with a cut face steeper 

in slope than two horizontal to one vertical if the applicant can reasonably show that the material 

making up the slope of the excavation and the underlying bedrock is capable of holding 

satisfactorily on a steeper gradient. No slopes shall be cut steeper than the bedding planes, fault 

or joint in any formation where the cut slope will lie on the dip side of the strike line of the 

fracture, bedding plane, fault or joint. No slopes shall be cut in an existing landslide, mudflow or 

other form of naturally unstable slope, except as recommended by a qualified geological 

engineer after conducting a site-specific geologic hazards study. Geologic hazards studies shall 

meet the minimum requirements of § 155.230 of this code. Where the excavation is exposed 

straight above the top of the cut which will permit the entry of water along bedding planes, this 

area shall be sealed with a compacted soil blanket having a minimum thickness of two feet. The 

soil for this blanket shall be relatively impervious and must be approved for such use by the 

engineering geologist. If the material of the slope is of such composition and character as to be 

unstable under the anticipated maximum moisture content, the slope angle shall be reduced to a 

stable value; and 

            3.   No excavation for construction of new utility and telephone lines shall be made in 

paved streets within five years after paving. During said five-year period, tunneling under such 

streets may be authorized if otherwise in compliance with this section, where to do so would 

facilitate construction of new utility and telephone lines, or maintenance unless approved by the 

County Engineer. 

         (o)   Fills. 

            1.   All fills shall be limited as follows: No fill slope shall exceed a vertical height of 100 

feet, unless horizontal benches with a minimum width of 30 feet are installed at each 100 feet of 

vertical height. 

            2.   The land use authority may permit a fill to be made which creates an exposed surface 

steeper in slope than two horizontal to one vertical if the applicant can reasonably show that the 

strength characteristics of the material to be used in the fill are such as to produce an equivalent 

degree of slope stability and sufficient strength characteristics to support the fill within 

reasonable settlement values so as to produce an equivalent degree of safety. 

         (p)   Prohibited activities. 

            1.   The provisions of this division (G) shall not be construed as permitting the removal of 

topsoil solely for resale, or of permitting quarrying of any site within the limits of the county, 

unless in a zoning district allowing such activities. 

            2.   This division (G) shall also not be construed as authorizing any person to maintain a 

private or public nuisance upon his or her property, and compliance with the provisions herein 

shall not be a defense in any action to abate such nuisance. 

(Prior Code, § 8-8-7) 

   (H)   Restricted lots. No building permits shall be issued for construction of any building or 

structure to be located on a restricted lot or parcel, unless the permit complies with all of the 

requirements pertaining to the specific restrictions in place on the lot or parcel and the county’s 

subdivision regulations. 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/morgancountyut/latest/morgancounty_ut/0-0-0-4781#JD_155.230


Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 19 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

(Prior Code, § 8-8-8) 

(Ord. 10-11, passed 6-15-2010; Ord. 10-16, passed 12-14-2010; Ord. 10-17, passed 12-14-2010; 

Ord. 11-03, passed 3-1-2011; Ord. 12-04, passed 5-1-2012; Ord. 14-08, passed 12-4-2014) 

 

  



Croydon Gravel Pit CUP  P a g e  | 20 

Application #CUP25.009 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit F: Application 

 

Click here to view a full-size .pdf 

version of the Application 

https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/Ee3R3ZkVuG5OsHG_E00BpugBVwdIGMu3Kx2mytaZz-Otmg?e=7G7OnW
https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/Ee3R3ZkVuG5OsHG_E00BpugBVwdIGMu3Kx2mytaZz-Otmg?e=7G7OnW


Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 1 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  

Public Meeting 

File #CUP25.004 

 

Applicant/Owner:   Michelle Palmer 

Project Location: Approx. 330’ northwest of the Porterville Chapel of the Church of 

Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints 

Parcel Number:  00-0000-7268 

Serial Numbers: 01-003-176 

Current Zoning: Rural Residential (RR-1) / Agriculture (A-20) 

Acreage:   8.49 acres 

  

 

 
REQUEST 

A request for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (C2) that is required for an indoor riding arena. 

 

ATTORNEY GUIDANCE: 

Administrative Review: CUPs are subject to administrative review. 

The sole issue in land use administration is whether the application complies with county 

ordinances. If it does, it must be approved.  The only circumstance in which an application 

could be denied is if a land use authority find that a compelling, countervailing public 

interest would be jeopardized.  In determining whether this circumstance exists, the courts 

have stated, “If a proposal met zoning requirements at the time of application but seriously 

threatens public health, safety, or welfare, the interests of the public should not be 

thwarted.”  W. Land Equities v. Logan, 617 P.2d 388, 395-96 (Utah Sup.Ct. 1980).” 

Essentially, the only situation in which such an application can be denied is the application 

seriously threatens public health, safety or welfare.   

While CUPs are subject to administrative review, they are an exception to the general zoning rule. 

By allowing them through ordinance, our County legislature has acknowledged that CUPs may 

have some impacts but has decided they are permissible. To address any detrimental effects that 

may arise, the legislature has also allowed for reasonable conditions to be imposed when those 

effects are reasonably anticipated.  In doing so, our County is following State law, which provides, 

“A land use authority shall approve a conditional use if reasonable conditions are proposed, or can 

be imposed, to mitigate the reasonably anticipated detrimental effects of the proposed use in 

accordance with applicable standards.” Utah Code Ann. § 17-27a-506(2)(a)(i). 

PLANNNG COMMISSION  
STAFF REPORT 
Conditional Use Permit 

October 23, 2025 



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 2 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

1. Introduction 

• Conditional uses are presumed to be appropriate and desirable in the designated zoning 

area. 

• CUPs must be approved if they meet the requirements outlined in the local ordinance. 

• Conditions may be imposed to mitigate reasonably anticipated detrimental effects. 

 

2. Guiding Principles 

• Presumption of Approval: A CUP must be approved unless detrimental effects cannot be 

substantially mitigated. 

• Reasonably Anticipated Detrimental Effects (RADEs):  

o Must be supported by substantial evidence. 

o Public clamor, opinion, or general opposition do not constitute substantial 

evidence. 

o Mitigation, Not Elimination: Conditions should substantially mitigate RADEs, but 

do not have to completely eliminate the detrimental effects. 

 

 3. Review Process 

  Step 1: Determine Compliance with Ordinance Standards 

• Identify the specific standards outlined in the local ordinance. 

• Confirm the CUP application meets these standards. 

 

 Step 2: Identify Potential Detrimental Effects 

• Consider only those effects that are reasonably anticipated and substantiated by 

credible evidence. 

• Disregard speculative, vague, or unsupported concerns.  

Step 3: Assess Evidence 

Evidence must be: 

• Relevant: Directly related to the proposed use and its impact. 

• Credible: Objective and fact-based. 

• Independent: Not influenced by public opinion alone. 

 

Step 4: Impose Reasonable Conditions (if necessary – remember by providing for a CUP 

in our local ordinance, County already recognizes that there may be effects) 

Conditions must be: 

• Ordinance-Based: Directly linked to the standards outlined in the local 

ordinance. Conditions not specified in the ordinance or unrelated to the 

identified detrimental effects are improper and unenforceable. 

• Appropriate: Within local government's authority. 

• Relevant: Specifically address the detrimental effects identified. 

• Proportionate: Not excessively burdensome compared to the impact. 

• Reasonable: Not intended to undermine the viability of the use. 

 

 4. Decision Making 

Approval:  If conditions can mitigate the detrimental effects, the CUP must be approved. 

 Denial:  Can only occur if: 

• Detrimental effects cannot be substantially mitigated. 



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 3 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

• Conditions imposed do not adequately address the specific issues. 

 

 5. Documentation and Findings 

  Clearly document: 

• Substantial evidence supporting the determination. 

• Specific reasons for either approval or denial. 

• Conditions imposed and their rationale. 

• Maintain a detailed record to support the decision in case of appeal. 

 

6. Avoiding Common Pitfalls 

• Public Clamor: Do not base decisions solely on public outcry. 

• Unsubstantiated Concerns: Avoid considering issues not backed by factual evidence. 

• Consistency: Apply standards uniformly to avoid arbitrary decisions. 

 

 7. Post-Approval Management 

• Conditions run with the land and are enforceable with subsequent owners. 

• Monitor compliance and address violations as needed. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the information in this staff report, planning staff recommends that the Planning 

Commission approve the requested Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application for an indoor riding 

arena subject to all applicable regulations and the following conditions: 

Conditions: 

1. That all animal housing, waste storage, and manure management associated with 

the use shall be operated and maintained to minimize odor, runoff, and pests in 

accordance with Weber-Morgan Health Department requirements. 

2. That any existing or future outdoor or indoor lighting associated with the use shall 

comply with the County’s Dark Sky Ordinance, be fully shielded, and directed 

downward to prevent glare or light spillover onto neighboring properties. 

3. That the property and operation shall remain in compliance with all applicable 

County, State, and Federal regulations to ensure continued protection of public 

health, safety, and general welfare. 

4. That hours of operation shall be limited to 6:00 a.m.–10:00 p.m. to minimize 

impacts on surrounding properties. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Staff has reviewed a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application for an indoor riding arena located 

on an 8.49-acre property in Morgan County. The arena and associated equestrian improvements 

were constructed and have been in operation prior to the submission of this application. The 

purpose of this request is to bring the existing use into compliance with the Morgan County Zoning 

Code and to obtain formal approval for continued operation of the facility as a “public stable, 

riding academy or riding ring, horse show barns or other equestrian facilities under single 

management” as defined in § 155.082, in conjunction with a business license application for the 

same operation. Approval of the CUP will authorize staff to issue the business license and confirm 

compliance with applicable land use and operational standards. 

 



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 4 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

The property contains an existing enclosed riding arena and associated parking and access areas 

that support equestrian instruction, training, and boarding activities. No new construction, 

expansion, or additional disturbance is proposed as part of this application; all site improvements 

exist currently. Access to the property comes from South Morgan Valley Drive, with additional 

existing paved driveways providing internal circulation. No new roads are proposed beyond the 

improvements required for on-site circulation and parking. On-site utilities consist of water, septic, 

and power, which currently support the operation of the indoor riding arena. The remaining acreage 

of the parcel consists primarily of open pasture and undeveloped land, which provides natural 

buffering from adjacent properties and helps maintain the rural character of the surrounding area. 

 

The applicant’s narrative describes the scope and nature of the existing use as follows: 

“Horse boarding. I board 6 horses. We have a riding area for the horse owners to use. I 

average 1–2 people per day to come. We have child riding lessons at most 1–2 per day. 

Sometimes none. There is plenty of parking at the barn off the street toward the back of the 

property. We keep our hay in a barn. We have a clean manure pile. No smells that permeate 

the area. No traffic worries. We have an open corral and a closed-in area for horse riding.” 

A more detailed description of the existing use is provided in the applicant’s narrative, herein 

attached as Exhibit “C.” 

 

Staff finds that the proposed CUP maintains compatibility with the surrounding area and the intent 

of the A-20 zoning district. Pursuant to § 155.082, this use is classified as a C2-level conditional 

use, granting the Planning Commission land use authority to review, approve, or deny the 

application based on findings of compliance with applicable zoning standards and compatibility 

with neighboring land uses. Approval of this CUP will formalize the existing indoor riding arena 

use, allowing continued equestrian boarding and instruction activities consistent with County 

standards. These aforementioned additional conditions would need to comply with the following 

standards as contained within § 155.366(A) Conditional Uses: 

 “ A.   Conditions Relating To Safety For Persons And Property: 

1.   Building elevations and grading plans which will prevent or minimize 

floodwater damage, where property may be subject to flooding. 

2.   The relocation, covering or fencing of irrigation ditches, drainage channels, 

and other potential attractive nuisances existing on or adjacent to the property. 

3.   Increased setback distances from lot lines where the planning commission 

determines it to be necessary to ensure the public safety and to ensure 

compatibility with the intended characteristics of the district as outlined in this 

title. 

4.   Appropriate design, construction and location of structures, buildings and 

facilities in relation to any earthquake fault which may exist on the property, 

and limitations and/or restrictions on the use and/or location of uses due to 

special site conditions, including, but not limited to, geologically hazardous 

areas; floodplains; fault zones; landslide areas. 

5.   Limitations and control of the number, location, color, size, height, lighting and 

landscaping of outdoor advertising signs and structures in relation to the 

creation of traffic hazards and appearance and harmony with adjacent 

development. 



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 5 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

6.   Plans for the location, arrangement and dimensions of truck loading and 

unloading facilities. 

7.   Construction of curbs, gutters, drainage culverts, sidewalks, streets, fire 

hydrants and street lighting. 

8.   Reduction of permitted street grades for winter and storm conditions, or 

exposure. 

9.   Fences shall not create visual nor other safety hazards. 

10.   Backing movements, passing vehicles, sidewalk traffic, small children, etc., 

shall be considered in the location of fences and effects on circulation system. 

11.   Numbers and types of vehicles per time period associated with the conditional 

use activities. 

12.   Time of day and days of the week conditional use may operate.” 

 

Any conditions that staff or the Planning Commission come up with should aim to ensure that the 

indoor riding arena operates in a manner that is compatible with surrounding land uses and 

minimizes any potential negative impacts on the community and the environment. 

 

CODE ANALYSIS 

Standards Findings Rationale 
Ordinance Evaluation. Morgan County Code § 155.008 defines conditional use as the following: 

 

CONDITIONAL USE: A land use that, because of the unique characteristics or potential impact of the land use on 

the county, surrounding neighbors or adjacent land uses, may not be compatible in some areas, or may be 

compatible only if certain conditions are required that mitigate or eliminate the detrimental impacts. (A 

development or land use application which requires a conditional use permit, pursuant to this chapter.)  

155.366 (D)   Conditions Relating To Safety For Persons And Property: 

1(a) Building elevations and grading plans which will prevent 

or minimize floodwater damage, where property may be 

subject to flooding. 

N/A Existing Structure 

1(b) The relocation, covering or fencing of irrigation ditches, 

drainage channels, and other potential attractive nuisances 

existing on or adjacent to the property. 

N/A  

1(c) Increased setback distances from lot lines where the 

planning commission determines it to be necessary to 

ensure the public safety and to ensure compatibility with 

the intended characteristics of the district as outlined in this 

title. 

N/A N/A 

1(d) Appropriate design, construction and location of 

structures, buildings and facilities in relation to any 

earthquake fault which may exist on the property, and 

limitations and/or restrictions on the use and/or location of 

uses due to special site conditions, including, but not 

limited to, geologically hazardous areas; floodplains; fault 

zones; landslide areas. 

N/A Existing 

1(e) Limitations and control of the number, location, color, size, 

height, lighting and landscaping of outdoor advertising 

signs and structures in relation to the creation of traffic 

hazards and appearance and harmony with adjacent 

development. 

N/A  



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 6 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

1(f) Plans for the location, arrangement and dimensions of 

truck loading and unloading facilities. 

N/A  

1(g) Construction of curbs, gutters, drainage culverts, 

sidewalks, streets, fire hydrants and street lighting. 

N/A Existing structure 

1(h) Reduction of permitted street grades for winter and storm 

conditions, or exposure. 

N/A  

1(i) Fences shall not create visual nor other safety hazards. N/A  

1(j) Backing movements, passing vehicles, sidewalk traffic, 

small children, etc., shall be considered in the location of 

fences and effects on circulation system. 

Will 

Comply 
 

1(k) Numbers and types of vehicles per time period associated 

with the conditional use activities. 

Will 

Comply 

 

1(l) Time of day and days of the week conditional use may 

operate. 

Will 

Comply 

 

155.366 (D)   Conditions Relating To Health And Sanitation: 

2(a) A guarantee of sufficient water to serve the intended land 

use and a water delivery system meeting standards adopted 

by the governing body. 

Complies  

2(b) A wastewater disposal system and a solid waste disposal 

system meeting standards adopted by the governing body. 

Complies  

2(c) Construction of water mains, sewer mains and drainage 

facilities serving the proposed use, in sizes necessary to 

protect existing utility users in the district and to provide 

for an orderly development of land in the county. 

N/A  

155.366 (D)   Environmental Concerns: 

3(a) Limitations and/or restrictions on the use and/or location of 

uses in sensitive areas due to soils capabilities, wildlife and 

plant life. 

N/A Accessory Structure 

3(b) Standards intended to conserve, enhance, restore and 

maintain significant natural and manmade features which 

are of public value, including among other things, river 

corridors, streams, lakes and islands, domestic water 

supply watersheds, flood storage areas, natural shorelines 

and unique vegetation, wetlands, wildlife and fish habitats, 

significant geological features, tourist attractions, 

archaeological features and sites, historic features and sites 

and scenic views and vistas, and to establish criteria and 

standards for the development, change of use, or alteration 

of such features. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(c) Processes for the control, elimination or prevention of land, 

water or air pollution; the prevention of soil erosion; and 

the control of objectionable odors. Processes for the 

control, elimination or prevention of land, water or air 

pollution; the prevention of soil erosion; and the control of 

objectionable odors. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(c)(1) These processes may include restrictions on degradation of 

water quality. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(c)(2) Developments which produce any discharge to any 

watercourse shall demonstrate compliance with all federal, 

state and county water quality standards as evidenced by 

the issuance of any permits required for their discharge by 

the federal government, state and/or county. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(c)(3) Whenever sedimentation is caused by stripping vegetation, 

regrading or other development, it shall be the 

responsibility of the person, corporation or other entity 

causing such sedimentation to remove it from all adjoining 

Will 

Comply 

 



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 7 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

surfaces and drainage systems prior to final approvals for 

the project. It is the responsibility of any person, 

corporation or other entity doing any act on or across a 

stream, watercourse or swale, or upon the floodplain or 

right of way thereof, to maintain as nearly as possible in its 

present state the stream, watercourse, swale, floodplain or 

right of way during such activity. 

3(d) The planting of ground cover or other surfacing to prevent 

dust and erosion. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(1) The proposed land disturbing activity will ensure and 

provide an undisturbed vegetation buffer from the top of 

the bank of a stream, wetland or other water body, unless a 

mitigation plan is approved for alterations within the buffer 

area. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(2) Whenever feasible, natural vegetation will be retained and 

protected. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(3) Temporary vegetation and/or mulching shall be used to 

protect exposed critical areas during development. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(d)(4) Plans will be made to accommodate increased runoff and 

sedimentation caused by altered soil and surface conditions 

during and after the proposed activity. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(e) Restructuring of the land and planting of the same as 

directed by the planning commission when the conditional 

use involves cutting and/or filling the land and where such 

land would be adversely affected if not restructured. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(f) Limitations and/or restrictions on construction and/or 

development on slopes in excess of thirty percent (30%) to 

control erosion. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(g) If the proposed conditional use involves hillside 

construction and/or development, the application will be 

approved only after the applicant provides: 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(g)(1) Topographic information showing that the proposed 

activity is on land with a slope less than thirty percent 

(30%) and that it is located more than two hundred feet 

(200') from a known landslide. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(g)(2) A geologic/geotechnical report which shall be in form and 

content approved by the county engineer, consisting of, 

among other things, a slope stability study, earthquake 

analysis and sedimentation analysis, prepared by a certified 

engineering geologist or geotechnical engineer approved 

by the county engineer, certifying that the site or route in 

its entirety is suitable for the proposed development. 

N/A Existing structure 

3(g)(3) Such other engineering or technical reports as may be 

required by the planning commission or governing body. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(g)(4) Detailed construction plans, drawings and specifications 

which outline all construction methods proposed to be 

utilized. 

Will 

Comply 

 

3(h) In all cases, the applicant may be required to supply a 

geologic report, a geotechnical study, a hydrological study, 

a civil engineering study and other applicable engineering 

studies required by the planning commission or governing 

body acceptable in form and content to the county 

engineer. 

N/A Existing structure 

3(i) The applicant's conditional use may be limited or denied if 

blasting, drilling or any other construction activity 

involved will weaken, or cause, adjoining slopes, geologic 

N/A  



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 8 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

formations and manmade improvements to become 

unstable or if the proposed construction or operation will 

result in the creation of a geologic hazard to surrounding 

properties, such as through slumping, sliding or drainage 

modifications. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE, MEETINGS, COMMENTS 

✓ Public Notice was submitted to the State of Utah Public Notice website on or before 

October 13, 2025; a minimum of 10 days prior to the scheduled meeting. (Morgan County 

Code § 155.032 (C)). 

✓ A Public Notice was posted at the County on or before October 13, 2025.  

✓ Notices to property owners within 1000’ feet of the proposed use were mailed a Public 

Notice on or before October 13, 2025.  

✓ A sign was posted on the site on or before October 13, 2025. 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION   

 

Recommended Motion for Approval – “I move we approve the Corner Canyon Equestrian Center 

CUP, application #CUP25.004, to allow for an indoor riding arena at property located 

approximately 330’ northwest of the Porterville Chapel of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-

day Saints in unincorporated Morgan County, based on the findings and with the conditions listed 

in the staff report dated October 23, 2025.” 

 

Recommended Motion for Approval with Conditions– “I move we approve the Corner Canyon 

Equestrian Center CUP, application #CUP25.004, to allow for an indoor riding arena at property 

located approximately 330’ northwest of the Porterville Chapel of the Church of Jesus Christ of 

Latter-day Saints in unincorporated Morgan County, based on the findings and with the conditions 

listed in the staff report dated October 23, 2025, and as modified by the conditions and findings 

below:” 

 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 

 

Recommended Motion for Denial – “I move we deny the Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP, 

application #CUP25.004, to not allow for an indoor riding arena at property located approximately 

330’ northwest of the Porterville Chapel of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints in 

unincorporated Morgan County, subject to the following findings: 

 

1. List any additional findings… 

 

 

 

  



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 9 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

Exhibit A: Vicinity Map 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

Exhibit C: Applicant Narrative 

Exhibit D: Graphic Representation of Proposal 

Exhibit E: Application



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 10 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit A: Vicinity Map 

   



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 11 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

   

Agriculture (A-20) 

Rural Residential 

(RR-1) 

Site 

8.49 ac 



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 12 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit C: Applicant Narrative 

   

   

Click here to view a full-size .pdf 

version of the Applicant Narrative 

https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/Eb-SJPDLLqdEgS9YnbCzh2sB_DF0yLvPuNTSBcaMl6zFpw?e=axursE
https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/Eb-SJPDLLqdEgS9YnbCzh2sB_DF0yLvPuNTSBcaMl6zFpw?e=axursE


Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 13 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

 

  



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 14 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

 

  



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 15 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

  



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 16 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit D: Graphic Representation of Proposal 

 

 

  



Corner Canyon Equestrian Center CUP  P a g e  | 17 

Application #CUP25.004 

October 23, 2025 

Exhibit E: Application 

 

 

 

Click here to view a full-size .pdf 

version of the Application 

https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/Eekvv4tikblIuay5HFzuZWUBhFCLSLQcjyTCJvgISU5_ow?e=cGp44M
https://morgancountyutah-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlance_morgancountyutah_gov/Eekvv4tikblIuay5HFzuZWUBhFCLSLQcjyTCJvgISU5_ow?e=cGp44M


PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

Thursday, October 9th, 2025 

Morgan County Commission Room 

6:30 pm 

 

Minutes of the Morgan County Planning Commission meeting at the above time and date at the 

Morgan County Courthouse, Commission Chambers; 48 West Young Street, Morgan, Utah. 

 

Present PC Members:      Absent PC Members    Public Attendance:  

Member Sessions               Member Telford    Tina Kelley            

Member Maloney                                     Skyler Gardner        

Member King                              Mike Mellott 

Steve Bendt                 Brandon Olson 

Member Wilson                           Jeff Lowe              

Member Watt                   

Member McMillian 

                                                               

Staff:  

Planning Director Cook – Planning Director 

Jeremy Lance -Planner I 

Mickelle Thackeray, Transcriptionist/Permit Tech  

  

      1.  Call to order – Prayer 

      2.    Pledge of Allegiance 

      3.    Approval of agenda 

 

 Motion by Member Wilson to approve the agenda. Second by Member Sessions. The vote was 

unanimous. Motion carried.  

 

      4.     Declaration of Conflicts of Interest 

  None. 

      5.     Public Comment 

   None. 

  

Administrative 

      

     6. Public Meeting/Discussion/Decision – Shadow Creek Development Preliminary Plat: 

A request for preliminary plat approval for a 14-lot subdivision, which is identified by parcel 

numbers 00-0090-2565& 00-0090-2644 and serial numbers 01-004-523-06 & 01-004-529-01 

and is located approximately 700 feet northwest of the intersection of West Surrey Lane and 

North Morgan Valley Drive in unincorporated Morgan County. 

 

Planner Lance presented the Shadow Creek development preliminary plat application for a 

subdivision of 14 lots. He said the property owner is Steve Peterson, and the current zoning is 

RR-5. The project is located 700 feet northwest of the intersection of West Surrey Lane and 

North Morgan Valley Drive. He said the applicant has gone through a rigorous application 

process with the Health Department to get approval for 14 lots, wells and septic. Staff has 

completed a review consisting of the county engineer, county planning, fire department, and the 



weber-morgan health department.  All reviewers found that this meets the standards for this 

application to achieve preliminary plat approval.  

 

Member Sessions questioned the status of utility easements and wellhead protection zones, 

noting they should be included within lot boundaries.  

 

Director Cook explained that the wells on lots seven and five are contained within their 

respective lots, but two wells are not.  

 

Member Sessions and Director Cook discussed the need for utility easements along side 

property lines and the inclusion of wellhead protection zones within lot boundaries.  

 

Member Sessions moved to recommend approval to the County Commission of the Shadow 

Creek Development Preliminary Plat, application number 24.069, for a proposed subdivision 

of 14 single family lots, located approximately 700 feet northwest of the intersection of W 

Surrey Ln and N Morgan Valley Dr in Milton, based on the findings and with the conditions 

listed in the staff report dated October 9, 2025, and with the following additional conditions: 

 

1. All lot utility easements shall be shown on the plat 

2. The well protection zone shall be identified wholly on the plat 

 

Second by Member King. The vote was unanimous. Motion carried. 

 

       7.       Public Meeting/Discussion/Decision – Meadow Park East Cottonwoods Phase 5A-5 

Preliminary Plat: A request for preliminary plat approval for a 24-lot subdivision throughout 

property across five (5) parcels, utilizing zero lot line homes with yards in common, which is 

identified by parcel numbers 00-0086-7344, 00-0092-5593, 00-0089-1186, 00-0086-4865, and 

00-0086-5513 and serial numbers 03-005-108-12-1, 03-005-108-13-1-1, 03-005-108-06-2-1, 03-

005-108-06-4, and 03-005-108-05-4, located approximately east of the intersection of Park 

Meadow Drive and Kingston Drive in unincorporated Morgan County.  

 

Planner Lance presented the Meadow Park East Cottonwood State 5-A preliminary plat 

application (25.009) for a 24-unit subdivision. The project is located east of the intersection of 

Park Meadow Drive and Kingston Drive, with a current zoning of RR-1. The lots range in size 

from 3000 to 3800 square feet, and the subdivision will feature open space and be maintained by 

an established HOA. Saff has reviewed the application and found it meets all minimum code 

requirements, with reviewers including the Mountain Green Fire Protection District and the 

county engineer.  

 

Skyler Gardner, the authorized representative for Cottonwood Meadows, addressed concerns 

about a temporary bike trail through the property. He explained that the trail will be closed 

during construction and will be accommodated between units 512 and 513. He also clarified that 

the units will stop before lot 3077, where the geotechnical report indicates that the hillside 

becomes too steep further south.  

 

Member Sessions asked how many units there will be. 

 



Skyler Gardner said there will be 92 units and 102 were approved. 

 

Member King moved to recommend approval to the County Commission of the Meadow Park 

East Cottonwoods Phase 5A-5 Preliminary Plat, application #25.009, allowing for a 24-lot 

subdivision of land located approximately east of the intersection of Park Meadow Drive and 

Kingston Drive in unincorporated Morgan County, based on the findings and with the 

conditions listed in the staff report dated October 9, 2025.  Second by Member Sessions.  The 

vote was unanimous. Motion carried. 

 

8.    Public Meeting/Discussion/Decision – Ponderosa Subdivision Preliminary Plat: A request 

for preliminary plat approval of a subdivision of 24 lots, which is identified by parcel numbers 00-

0083-4593,00-0083-4595, and 00-0063-3521 and serial numbers 03-POND1-0101, 03-POND1-

0103, 03-005-029, and is approximately located at 6113 N Hidden Valley Rd in unincorporated 

Morgan County.  

 

** Staff requests for this item to be continued to the Planning Commission Meeting on October 

23rd, 2025 ** 

 

Member King motioned to continue the Ponderosa Subdivision Preliminary Plat to the 

December 11th, 2025 meeting.  Second by Member McMillian. The vote was unanimous. Motion 

carried. 

 

9.    Public Meeting/Discussion/Decision – North Side Creek P.R.U.D, No. 2 Plat Amendment: 

A request for an amendment to the North Side Creek P.R.U.D. Subdivision plat to create three (3) 

additional lots, identified by parcel number 00-0089-1772 and serial number 03-NSCRK-K-A1, 

and located approximately 0.22 Miles northeast of the intersection of North Cottonwood Canyon 

Road and North Lakeside Drive in unincorporated Morgan County.  

 

Planner Lance presented the North Side Creek PRU plat amendment application (25.008) for the 

creation of three lots. The project is located approximately 0.22 miles northeast of the intersection 

of North Cottonwood Canyon Road and North Lakeside Drive. The lots will range in size between 

0.8 acres and 0.86 acres, and the amendment satisfies the bonus density granted by the county 

commission. 

 

The commission discusses the stipulations for the bonus density, including the restoration of the 

roundabout and repairs to Silver Leaf Road. 

 

Member Wilson moved to recommend approval to the County Commission of the Northside 

Creek P.R.U.D, No. 2 Plat Amendment, application #25.008, allowing for the creation of three 

(3) lots, located approximately 0.22 Miles northeast of the intersection of North Cottonwood 

Canyon Road and North Lakeside Drive in unincorporated Morgan County, based on the 

findings and with the conditions listed in the staff report dated October 9, 2025. Second by 

Member McMillian. The vote was unanimous. 

 

10. Business/Staff Questions 

 

The commission discussed the need to update the planning commission bylaws, including the 

chair's voting rights and attendance virtually.  



 

Director Cook offered to provide a tutorial on civic review and the use of the system for planning 

commissioners.  

 

11.   Approval of September 11, 2025 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

Motion by Member King. Second by Member Sessions. The vote was unanimous. Motion 

carried. 

 

12.    Adjourn 

 

Motion by Member Telford. Second by Member King. The vote was unanimous. Motion carried. 

  

 

Approved:  

 

__________________________________ Date: __________________________ 

Chairman, Maddie Maloney 

Morgan County Planning Commission 

 

 

__________________________________ Date: __________________________ 

Mickelle Thackeray, Transcriptionist 

Planning and Development Services 

 


	PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
	Administrative

